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Master 5 & MED 3 
2008 is shaping up to be a very busy year, 
with enrolments to date exceeding last 
year’s total. Demand is across all sectors, 
especially Salmonid farming.

Our thanks go to Michael Roach from 
Navigators who has given us access to 
his vessels for the Master 5 and MED 3 
practicals. This has enabled us to deliver 
these courses 100% in Hobart! We are 
currently in discussion with Marine and 
Safety Tasmania (MAST) as to alternative 
assessment methods.

Elements of Shipboard Safety (ESS)
The brand new ESS course designed for 
coastal vessel operators has now been 
well and truly tested and will be an ongoing 
offering. The course was designed to comply 
with the concerns of the Tasmanian Fishing 
Industry Council (TFIC) and to meet MAST 
requirements.  Our next course is full, but 
we have places on the early and late May 
courses. Get your enrolments in now!

Our thanks go to Helicopter Resources Pty 
Ltd for the loan of two lifting strops. These 
will be a great training aid in the ESS 
course, as we will be able to simulate a 
helicopter rescue at sea. 

Coxswain Program
We are offering Coxswain courses 
statewide again this year. The course 
scheduled for Dover looks like it’s full. We 
still have places on the Strahan course in 
August and the Smithton course in June. 
Our next Hobart courses in early April and 
May are filling rapidly.

Please book now to avoid disappointment.

Traineeships
Enrolments in Certificate III in the Seafood 
Industry Aquaculture continue to grow. The 
mix of classroom delivery both on- and off-
site; workplace delivery and assessment; 
Commonwealth incentives; State funding; 
and, most important of all, industry 
relevant training, is attracting new trainees 
from both shellfish and salmonid farms.

Sea Safety DVD project
STT is in the early stages of a project 
to produce a Safety at Sea DVD. Rosny 
College Media and Maritime units will make 
the DVD, with STT providing the funding and 
management. The DVD will cover actions 
from abandoning ship to rescue, with the 
emphasis on life-raft usage. Rosny College 
students will produce the DVD and act as 
the survivors. 

Graham Gates will supervise the media 
students, and Dave Williams the maritime 
students. MAST will provide guidance, 
and the DVD will be distributed free 
to commercial vessel users. As the 
production of the DVD will form part 
of the student’s assessable work, we 
anticipate that the launch will take place 
in late 2008.

STT Board
Welcome to Sam Ibbott from Marine 
Solutions. As our newest member, Sam 
brings his teaching, research and TFIC 
experience to the Board. He has already 
made some useful suggestions and we 
are considering them at the moment.

National Issues
The National Maritime and Safety 
Council’s draft review of Part D will be 
out in the next few weeks. Judging by 
the consultations to date, this document 
will propose some radical changes to the 
regulation of vessel licensing.

Please keep your eyes open for the 
opportunity to comment, and discuss 
the issues with your sector groups, with 
MAST and  with TFIC. STT can provide 
some insight into the consequences of 
some of the proposed changes. 

If you don’t express an opinion, don’t 
complain later if you’re not happy with 
the result!

Seafood Training Tasmania by Rory Byrne

Training spots fi lling fast

 Trainee signup at Van Diemen Aquaculture. Left to right: Anne Wright, Julie Jones and Bradley Sigtenhorst

 Trainee Michael Farquhar adjusting 
oxygen flow rates at Springfield Hatchery, Scottsdale 
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 by Julie Podmore

Hallam’s Waterfront Restaurant
4 Park St Launceston

‘Try it slow and low” is the message I get 
from the new enthusiastic head chef at 
Hallam’s, Chris Nobes, when I ask him for 
some tips on cooking scalefish. We are sitting 
at a corner table of the waterfront restaurant, 
with one of the best views in Launceston – 
overlooking the Tamar, historic Ritchie’s Mill, 
King’s Bridge and Cataract Gorge. 

Chris has been cooking since he was 
15, and has worked with Daniel Alps at 
Strathlynn, and helped set up the cellar door 
and restaurant at Josef Cromy.  At 29, he is 
pretty pleased with life – and is very happy 
with his move to Hallam’s - a restaurant 
he has always admired, and where he can 
indulge his passion for cooking seafood. 
‘I’ve been cooking bucketloads of crayfish 
lately,’ he tells me, ‘Price seems to be 
no object for customers.’ He goes on to 
describe the ‘Legends and Lobster’ lunch 
he prepared for the Launceston Cup, which 
featured a fascinating menu consisting of 
four rock lobster courses: crayfish mousse 
and crayfish curry puffs; crayfish bisque; 
carapace custard (a sort of pate made from 
crayfish liver –‘the first thing that the old 
timers eat!’); and crayfish tails with seasonal 
salad and asparagus.

After a ‘frantic time’ over summer, Chris 
is looking forward to winter, when things 
slow down a bit, and he can spend some 
time thinking about revamping the menu. 
And speaking of ‘slow’, here is Chris’s tip 
for cooking scalefish :

Oven-baked scalefish – slow and low

Put a fillet of fish  (around 180g) on a 
piece of greaseproof paper in a baking 
dish. Cover both sides with plenty of 
lemon juice, salt and pepper. Top with a 
(large) knob of butter and cook for only 
10-12 minutes (depending on thickness 
of fillet) in an oven pre-heated to 160 
degrees. 

Spoon over lemon butter and serve with 
baked Kipfler potatoes and asparagus; or 
with a tomato/red onion/parmesan salsa 
(I just spooned over the fish the butter/
lemon mixture that had collected on the 
paper). 

I ask Chris what the most popular dish 
on the current menu is, and he tells me 
about his green curry of mixed seafood. 
So I try it  - and am so inspired, that I try 
it out on hubby the following night. Very 
successful!

Seafood Green Curry (for 2)

Make a curry paste by blending: 

1 small red onion chopped

2 fat cloves garlic chopped

1 5cm piece of ginger chopped

 1 long red chilli; 1 long green chilli

1 heaped tsp each of paprika, turmeric, 
and curry powder

½ bunch of coriander (including stalks)

juice of a lime or lemon

Make the sauce by cooking the curry 
paste in oil in a pan for a few minutes to 
release the flavour. Add a small can of 
coconut milk and ½ of the coconut can of 
single cream. Simmer for a few minutes. 

In another heated pan, quickly cook 
500g of mixed seafood (Chris used 
prawns, mussels, scallops and trevalla) 
in olive oil. Add sauce and simmer till the 
mussels open. 

Serve on a bed of rice, and top with 
mango salsa (chopped mango, red onion 
and coriander) and a dollop of yoghurt 
and finely sliced mint. Chris suggested 
I accompany the dish with a ‘nice 
Gewürztraminer’. I tried the Craigow on 
offer – and it was delicious. 

HAND OGILVIE & BREHENY
LAWYERS

FOR ALL YOUR LEGAL NEEDS

Level 6
Reserve Bank Building
111 Macquarie Street
Hobart Tas 7000

GPO Box 3
Hobart TAS 7001

T: 03 6234 7622
F: 03 6223 3852

Email: lawyers@hob.com.au
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> MAST News

In 2002, Marine and Safety Tasmania 
(MAST) introduced changes that meant 
certificates of competency issued before 
the introduction of the USL Code needed 
to be renewed by 1 January 2003. Five 
years have now rolled on, and these 
certificates of competency will again 
require renewal by 31 December 2008.

In order to renew a valid Pre-USL 
certificate, a person will need to:

• complete an application form that 
includes a self-declared medical / 
eyesight form 

• provide a copy of a current Level II 
first aid certificate (or an equivalent 
first aid certificate such as a ‘First 
Aid for Divers’).

There are no fees or charges to renew a 
pre-USL certificate of competency.

Although December is still nine months 
away, it can take some time to arrange 
a first aid course, and it may be 
advantageous to complete the course 
soon, particularly when many fishing 
sectors are in full swing later in the year 
close to the renewal date.

MAST will be mailing out reminder letters 
to valid pre-USL certificate holders in the 
next month to advise them of the need to 
renew their certificate of competency.

Start renewal process for pre-USL 
certifi cates of competency NOW

CERTIFICATES OF COMPETENCY IN 
TASMANIA

Marine and Safety Tasmania (MAST) 
issues the certificates of competency 
that are required to operate commercial 
vessels in Tasmania. MAST believes that 
we have the best system for certificates 
of competency in Australia.

To start with, we are the only state that 
issues certificates in accordance with 
the National Standards for Commercial 
Vessels (NSCV). Other states are still 
using the USL Code that was developed 
over 25 years ago. Some of the benefits 
Tasmania enjoys over other states are:

• simple self-declared medicals rather 
than medicals conducted by doctors 
for lower grade certificates

• the Skipper 3 has been combined 
with the Master 5 so that a person 
with the same qualifications can 
operate fishing or trading vessels

• you can now use 100% recreational 
sea time to get a Coxswain certificate 
and get a start in the industry.

• you can use 50% recreational sea 
service to get a Skipper 3 / Master 
5 and therefore get your certificate 
quicker if you have been around 
vessels

• coxswain has been broken down into 
simple training modules so you can 
start working in the industry with a 
restricted coxswain where you only 
require 180 days recreational time in 

small vessels and a five-day training 
course. You can then increase to a 
15nm certificate as you get more sea 
time and training.

We have a system called ‘ROPES (Record 
of Practical Experience and Service) 
so that you can halve the sea time 
required for a certificate of competency. 
The principle of ROPES is that if you do 
proper on the job training, you should get 
your sea time twice as quickly! To get into 
the ROPES program, you buy a record 
book from MAST and get the skipper or 
engine driver to sign off to say you have 
learnt various tasks on their vessel. You 
then send the completed book back to 
MAST with your application.

We are also lucky in Tasmania to have 
two training providers who want to get 
students properly trained and competent. 
Seafood Training Tasmania and the 
Australian Maritime College both work 
closely with MAST. Collectively, we design 
the training to ensure a person can do 
the job on a vessel. We are placing less 
emphasis on theory, and moving more 
towards students showing they can 
complete practical tasks. Both training 
providers now assess students on real 
vessels and in real engine rooms.

This is also flowing onto the way MAST 
does what used to be known as ‘oral 
exams’. Instead of the applicant having 
to pass the training course and then 
front up for ‘orals’, we are trialling a 
system where the two assessments 
are conducted at the same time. 
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To make it even more relevant, the 
testing is done on a vessel and the 
student demonstrates they can actually 
do important tasks like manage an 
overheating engine, or tune a radar. 

Of course our system is not perfect and 
there are still challenges. We need to 
look at how the certificate structure might 
need to change to cope with the trend 
to larger vessels with higher horsepower 
engines. We need to think about how we 

can get better quality sea training, so a 
person can get a certificate quicker. We 
also need to keep focussing on making 
training practical and highly relevant 
without causing it to become any longer 
or more expensive.

The time to think about these issues 
is now. The National Marine Safety 
Committee is re-drafting the standard 
that determines how you get a certificate 
of competency. There has already been 

an issues paper out for comment and a 
draft standard will follow. It is important 
that the fishing industry participates in 
the development of the new standard, so 
that the way we issue certificates is even 
better in the future.

For further information contact MAST 
on 1300 133 513 or visit the website: 
www.mast.tas.gov.au

MAST jetties are public jetties that are 
available for use by all vessel owners. 
Jetties have loading areas set aside so 
that a vessel will always have a position to 
come alongside for a short while to load 
and unload. Other sections of MAST jetties 
are available for berthing for a reasonable 
time period that ensures a fair go for 
everyone.

In July 2007, new MAST Jetty By-laws gave 
better powers to manage vessels that 
berth for excessive periods at MAST public 
jetties. 

MAST has now developed a procedure to 
handle situations where vessels berth at 
a MAST jetty for excessive periods. The 
procedure is designed to ensure vessel 
owners have reasonable warning to move 
their vessel before an infringement notice 
is issued. 

The procedure will be:

• MAST will telephone the vessel owner 
and if there is no answer a message 
will be left.  If no reply to the message 
is received within 3 working days;

• MAST will write a letter to the vessel 
owner directing them to remove their 
vessel from the Jetty for a minimum 
period of 7 days.   The letter may 
either be delivered to a home address 
(if known) or placed on the vessel (or 
both).  If the vessel owner does not 
move the vessel within 14 days (of the 
date of the letter), or call MAST and 
come to a satisfactory arrangement;

• MAST will issue an infringement 
notice under clause 18 of the Marine 
and Safety (Jetties) By-laws 2007 for 
failing to comply with a Direction.  This 
infringement notice will have a penalty 
of two penalty points or $240.00.

MAST believes the issuing of infringement 
notices would be regrettable and seeks 
the co-operation of all jetty users to 
ensure fair and reasonable access for 
all users.

>MAST News

Berthing at MAST jetties 

Ph: 6264 1999  FAX: 6264 1441 

62 Main Road, Huonville
AFTER HOURS: Robin Bond 6266 0208

• Aluminium dinghies – new & used
• Suppliers of CLARK aluminium boats
• State distributor for:

For a deal that won’t be beaten – call us now
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WEBSITE LINKS

AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT
Australian Fisheries Management Authority 
(AFMA)
www.afma.gov.au
Australian Maritime Safety Authority
www.amsa.gov.au
Bureau of Meteorology
www.bom.gov.au/weather/tas
CSIRO – Marine and Atmospheric Research
www.cmar.csiro.au 
Department of Agriculture Fisheries and 
Forestry (DAFF)
also includes:
Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource 
Economics (ABARE)
Australian Quarantine and Inspection Service 
(AQIS)
Biosecurity Australia (BA) 
Bureau of Rural Sciences (BRS)
www.daff.gov.au
Department of Environment and Water 
Resources (DEW)
www.environment.gov.au 
FarmBis
www.farmbis.gov.au 
Fisheries Research and Development 
Corporation (FRDC)
www.frdc.com.au 
Food Standards Australia New Zealand 
(FSANZ)
www.foodstandards.gov.au
National Oceans Office (NOO)
www.oceans.gov.au/home.jsp 
OceanWatch also includes:
SeaNet
www.oceanwatch.org.au 
Seafood Services Australia (SSA)
www.seafood.net.au 
Seafood Training Australia (STA)
www.seafoodtraining.com.au

STATE
Department of Primary Industries and Water
www.dpiw.tas.gov.au and/or www.fishing.tas.gov.au
Marine and Safety Tasmania
www.mast.tas.gov.au/domino/mast/newweb.nsf
Natural Resource Management (NRM)
www.nrmtas.com.au 
Tasmanian Aquaculture and Fisheries Institute
fcms.its.utas.edu.au/scieng/mrl/index.asp
Tasmanian Fishing Industry Council (TFIC)
www.tfic.com.au

FISHERIES WHOLESALE
Master Fish Merchants Association
www.mfma.com.au/
Melbourne Wholesale Fish Market
www.chsmith.com.au/fish-prices/index.htm 
Sydney Fish Market
www.sydneyfishmarket.com.au

TASMANIAN FISHING INDUSTRY COUNCIL

PO Box 878, Sandy Bay 7006 
117 Sandy Bay Rd, Sandy Bay 7005
Chief Executive: Neil Stump 0417 394 009
neilstump@tfic.com.au  www.tfic.com.au
Ph 03 6224 2332  Fax 03 6224 2321

WILD FISHERIES

Tasmanian Abalone Council Ltd
Macquarie Wharf No.1, Hunter St, 
Hobart 7000
President: Greg Woodham
0419 524 174
Chief Executive: Dean Lisson 0419 599 954
Administration Manager: Melinda Mullen 
Ph 03 6231 1955  Fax 03 6231 1966
tasab@bigpond.net.au

Tasmanian Commercial Divers Group
PO Box 13, Scamander 7215
President: Dale Ridgers 0419 393 599
Ph 03 6372 5620

Tasmanian Rock Lobster Fishermen’s 
Association 
President: John Sansom  03 6247 7284
CEO: Rodney Treloggen
Ph/Fax 03 6376 1805  0418 138 768
Secretary/Treasurer: Margaret Atkins
Financial Officer: Les Nielsen 0407 504 716

Tasmanian Scalefish Fishermen’s Association
President: Shane Bevis – 
Ph/Fax 03 6247 7634
Secretary: (Mrs) Colleen Osborne 
PO Box 332, Somerset 7322. 
Ph 03 6435 0068

Tasmanian Scallop Fishermen’s Association
286 Windermere Rd, Windermere 7252 
President: John Hammond 0429 130 238
Secretary/Treasurer: (Mrs) Jill Hammond
Ph 03 6328 1478  Fax 03 6328 1421

Tasmanian Shark Fishermen’s Association
64 Ormond St, Bellerive 7018
President: Brian Bailey 0407 874 199
Secretary/Treasurer: (Mrs) Heather Bailey
Ph 03 6244 2775  Fax 03 6244 6939

Tasmanian Sashimi Fishermen’s Association
14 Tabor Road, Acton Park 7170
President: Peter Green
Secretary: David Chaffey  Ph 03 6248 1928

AQUACULTURE

Tasmanian Aquaculture Council
PO Box 878, Sandy Bay 7006
117 Sandy Bay Rd, Sandy Bay 7005
Chairman: James Calvert
Ph 0418 352 639 
James.Calvert@bigpond.com
TFIC:  Neil Stump  0417 394 009
email neilstump@tfic.com.au

Tasmanian Marine Farmers Association
PO Box 83, Triabunna 7190
Ph 03 6257 7466
Secretary: Geoff Pickard 03 6225 1547 

Tasmanian Salmonid Growers Association
PO Box 321, Sandy Bay 7006
Chairman: Chris Dockray
Executive Officer: Pheroze Jungalwalla
Ph 03 6214 0555  
Contact@tsga.com.au   www.tsga.com.au

Tasmanian Shellfish Executive Council
PO Box 878 Sandy Bay 7006
Chairman – Tom Kennedy  0408 352 321
kennycasual@hotmail.com
Acting Secretary: Tom Gray 0419 398 640 

Tasmanian Abalone Growers Association
Chairman: Mike Wing
PO Box 11, Dunalley 7177
Ph 03 6253 6007 Fax 03 6253 6009

Bruny Island Shellfish Growers Association
President: Des Wolfe  
PO Box 2080, Lower Sandy Bay 7005  
Ph/Fax 03 6225 0321

DPIW MARINE RESOURCES

Scallops, Giant Crab, Octopus, 
or Rock Lobster Inquiries
Rod Pearn Ph 03 6233 6380 or 
Hilary Revill Ph 03 6233 6036

Abalone or Marine Plant Inquiries
Andrew Sharman Ph 03 6233 3512

Commercial Dive Inquiries or Inshore Clams
Greg Ryan Ph 03 6216 4227

Scalefish Inquiries
Matt Bradshaw Ph 03 6233 3018

Recreational Fishing Inquiries
Howel Williams Ph 03 6233 3523

Licensing Inquires
Ph 03 6233 2147

Quota Monitoring Inquiries
Ph 03 6233 3539

Marine Farm Planning/Operations Inquiries
Tony Thomas Ph 03 6233 6497

Marine Environment Inquiries
Colin Shepherd Ph 03  6233 3179

Special Permits
Sally Williams Ph 03 6233 3119

TRAINING

Seafood Training Tasmania
2a Gladstone Street, Hobart 7000
Manager Rory Byrne Ph 03 6233 6442  
Fax 03 6223 2780
stt@seafoodtrainingtas.com.au

> Directory



 

 

A PROUDLY TASMANIAN
ENTERPRISE

“Our people are our family”

George Doumouras
General Manager

“Your guarantee of quality & integrity”

41 – 42 Franklin Street ◆ George Town ◆ Tasmania ◆ 7253 ◆ Australia

Phone (03) 6382 3466 ◆ Fax (03) 6382 3060 ◆ Mobile (George) 0418 133 419
ABN 76 076 219 988

Our George Town plant is a large, export accredited, multi-purpose seafood processing facility, supplying 

a range of ocean fresh species, including:

 • Orange Roughy • Smooth Dory • Oreo Dory

 • Blue Grenadier • Pink Ling • Silver Warehou

 • Garfish • Calamari • Arrow Squid

 • Shark • Australian Salmon • Mackerel

 • School Whiting • Scallops • and other deep sea fish.

With our own fishing vessel we catch quality seafood for you. George Town Seafoods is EU compliant which 

ensures quality and freshness that is unparalleled in our industry. 

Give us a call today for all your seafood requirements.






